
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 1 


 
 
 


 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: June 4, 2020 


 
(*In order discussed) 


 
June 4, 2020 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski (arr. 6:39 p.m.) 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Larry Spillane 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Gregory Ramirez, IEDA 
      Doug Dove, Bartle Wells Associates 
      Abigail Seaman, Bartle Wells Associates 
      Keith McDonald 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:34 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 


p.m.) 
 
The GM suggested deferring Item IX-B (Closed Session – GM Performance Evaluation).  Brief 
discussion ensued.  This item was not removed from Agenda. 
 
The GM removed item IX-A (Closed Session – Conference with Labor Negotiator). 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
President Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following 
items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 7, 2020 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 







 2 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
(None.)  
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:35 p.m.)  Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-13, Adopting Water 


Rates for FY 2020-21 and Analysis of protests received.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item, with a PowerPoint presentation.   


 
** Director Lipinski arrived at 6:39 p.m. 
 


Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Rate Study Consultant Doug Dove, 
Bartle Wells Associates.  Further discussion ensued.  At 7:09 p.m. Director Holmer 
opened the Public Hearing.  There were no comments.  At 7:10 p.m. the Public Hearing 
was closed.  Further discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt 
Resolution 20-13, Adopting Water Rates for FY 2020-21.  Director Schaap seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0.   


 
V-B. (7:14 p.m.)  Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-14, Adopting the 


FY 2020-21 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item with a PowerPoint presentation.  Board discussion ensued.  At 7:33 
p.m., Director Holmer opened the Public Hearing.  There were not comments.  At 7:33 
p.m. the Public Hearing was closed.  Further discussion ensued.  Comments were made 
by Legal Counsel Rachel Hundley.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 
20-14, Adopting the FY 2020-21 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget amended to 
change the reference to “District Treasurer” in the first whereas to be the “District 
Financial Coordinator and Budget Committee”.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion 
carried 5-0.    


 
V-C. (7:40 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan/COVID-19 testing 


update.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Holmer provided further 
overview.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Keith McDonald.  
Public comment was made by Julie Kenny.  Further discussion ensued.   


 
 
** At 8:36 the Board took a brief recess.  The meeting reconvened at 8:41 p.m. 
 
 
V-D. (8:41 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Proposed District tax lien policy.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken. 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:55 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. In-House Construction Projects 
6. Labor Negotiations 







 3 


7. Lower Russian River Community Action Governance Meeting 
8. Lower Harrison Tank Site Retainer Wall Update 
9. Grant(s) Update 
10 Economic Impact of Non-Disconnect Order 
11. Gantt Chart 
 
Discussion ensued.  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(9:12 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:12 p.m.) 
 
1. Tax lien 
2. Emergency Response Plan update 
3. Labor negotiations 
4. FY 2020-21 Capital Improvement project 
 
 


IX. CLOSED SESSION (9:13 p.m.) 
 
At 9:13 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 9:13 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:32 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
action was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6) 
 District negotiator: Gregory Ramirez 
 Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 This item was removed from the Agenda earlier in the meeting.  
 
B. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release pursuant to Gov. Code 


Section 54954.5(e) 
 This item was calendared for further discussion at the July Board meeting. 
 


 
ADJOURN 


 
The meeting adjourned at 9:33 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Rich Holmer        
Larry Spillane        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:34 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) *

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:55 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(9:12 p.m.)



		A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6)

		District negotiator: Gregory Ramirez

		Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39

		This item was removed from the Agenda earlier in the meeting.

		This item was calendared for further discussion at the July Board meeting.

		ADJOURN






 1 


 
 
 


 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: June 17, 2020 (Special Meeting) 


 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


June 17, 2020 
2:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Larry Spillane 
   
Board Members Absent: Richard Holmer 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
  
Others in Attendance:     (None.) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (2:38 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Acting President Sukey Robb-Wilder at 
2:38 p.m. 
 


 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT (2:38 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


III. CLOSED SESSION (2:38 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
At 2:39 p.m. Acting President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed 
Session.  At 2:42 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 3:51 p.m. the meeting reconvened 
and the following action was announced: 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Gregory Ramirez 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:52 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 







 2 


 
 


Ed Fortner 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Pip Marquez de la Plata       
Rich Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (2:38 p.m.)

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (2:38 p.m.)

		III. CLOSED SESSION (2:38 p.m.)*

		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


July 2, 2020 Regular Meeting 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 


MEETING LINK: 
https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/


j.phpMTID=mfaf50c5c93e9181d69b13ff7305c4374 
 
 


Meeting Number: 126 617 9983 
Password: 8b7sW8pNEpJ 


 
JOIN BY PHONE: 


1-415-655-0001 US Toll   
Access Code: 126 617 9983 


Password: 82779876 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to 
everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of the 
need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager or 
Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on the 
agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are on 
file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda unless the Board President allows additional time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 



https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.phpMTID=mfaf50c5c93e9181d69b13ff7305c4374

https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.phpMTID=mfaf50c5c93e9181d69b13ff7305c4374

https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.phpMTID=mfaf50c5c93e9181d69b13ff7305c4374





 2 


 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 4, 2020 Board Meeting and the June 17, 


2020 Special Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 


A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-15, Approving a Memorandum of Understanding 
with International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local 39 and Authorizing 
the Board President to Sign Said Memorandum (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-18, Approving the Contract for Professional 


Services for Design and Planning of the FY 2020-21 Capital Improvement Project 
(CIP) with Coastland Engineering and Authorizing the General Manager to Sign (Est. 
time 15 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action Re Resolution 20-16, Approving the Contract for Professional 


Services for a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan with Harris and Associates and 
Authorizing the General Manager to Sign (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan/COVID-19 update (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-19, Proposed District Tax Lien Policy (Est time 15 


min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-17, Ordering an Election to be Held and 


Requesting Consolidation with the November 3, 2020 Consolidated District Election 
(Est. time 10 min.) 


 
 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  







 3 


 
VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION  
 


B. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1)- Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation  


  Title: General Manager 
 


ADJOURN 







 4 


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 20-15 APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING 
ENGINEERS, STATIONARY LOCAL 39
   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 20-15 which approves an MOU with the 
International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary Local 39.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $152,000 for wages and $90,000 for health benefits 
for the full five years of the agreement. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary Local 39 (Union) represents 6 
District employees, including Maintenance Workers and Account Clerks.  The current MOU 
with the Union expires on June 30, 2020.  District staff have been negotiating with Union 
representatives since February 2020 on revising the MOU.  These negotiations have been 
completed with the following major changes: 
 


• The MOU runs through June 2025 (five years). 
• A salary schedule has been approved with a 3% increase each year in salaries for 


Fiscal Year 2020-2021 through Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 
• District contribution for healthcare benefits have a 5% annual increase each year 


of the five-year contract.    
• The Boot allowance is raised to $240 effective July 1, 2020 and will increase 


$5 each year of the agreement. 
• The Grievance Section adds mediation as an alternative option (already has 


binding arbitration). 
• Other changes to the MOU have been made that incorporate earlier agreed-upon 


side letters with the Union.   
 
The MOU was negotiated in good faith with District staff and a Union representative.   It 
is a five-year agreement that works well for the staff represented by the Union, staff not 
represented by the Union, and the District.  I recommend approval. 





		Meeting Date: July 2, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 20-18 APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH 
COASTLAND ENGINEERING FOR DESIGN AND PLANNING OF FY 2020-2021 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 20-18 which approves the contract with 
Coastland for Design and Planning for the FY 2020-2021 CIP.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $144,900 for Design and Planning. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Coastland Engineering has worked with the District to successfully receive up to $115,920 
from CDBG for Planning and Design for the FY 2020-2021 Capital Improvement Project 
of 5,600’ of 6” HDPE water main replacement on Old River Road and Woodland Drive.  
Using this Grant funding, the General Manager recommends we continue our positive 
professional working relationship with Coastland on this very important project and 
approve their submittal and contract.  







RESOLUTION 20-18 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
FOR DESIGN AND PLANNING OF THE FY 2020-2021 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT (CIP) WITH COASTLAND ENGINEERING INC., AND AUTHORIZING THE 


GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN  
 


 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District has contracted with Coastland 


Engineering for a Water Services Rate Study for Sweetwater Springs Water District; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District has worked with Coastland in the successful Grant 
procurement of CDBG funds for this Design and Planning portion of the CIP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Coastland is the best placed professional services company to 
provide the services for this project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Coastland Engineering has submitted a proposal for these services 
attached as Exhibit A; and 
 


WHEREAS, staff has reviewed this proposal and finds it fair and complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, District Council has reviewed and approved the agreement 
 


 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The Agreement for Professional Services for Design and Planning for the FY 2020-
2021 CIP with Coastland, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby 
approved in the sum of not to exceed $144,900; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 2, 
2020, by the following vote: 
 







Resolution 20-18. Agreement for Professional Services for Design and Planning for FY 
2020-2021 CIP with Coastland  
July 2, 2020          2 
 


 


 
 
 


   
  


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


              
      Richard Holmer     
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Larry Spillane       







 


 Santa Rosa Auburn  Pleasant Hill Fairfield 
 1400 Neotomas Avenue 11641 Blocker Drive, Ste. 170  3478 Buskirk Avenue, Ste. 1000 324 Campus Lane, Ste. A 
 Santa Rosa, CA  95405 Auburn, CA 95603  Pleasant Hill, CA  94523 Fairfield, CA  94534 
 Tel: 707.571.8005 Tel: 530.888.9929  Tel: 925.233.5333 Tel: 707.702.1961  
  
    www.coastlandcivil.com 


 


June 22, 2020 
 
Mr. Ed Fortner 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
17081 Highway 116, Suite B 
Guerneville, CA 95446 
 
Subject: Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services for the FY 2021 CIP Project 
 
 
Dear Ed, 
 
Per your request, we have prepared this letter proposal for the engineering work associated with 
subject project.   


Project Background/Understanding 
 
The Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) is continuing their ongoing program to replace 
aging and undersized water system infrastructure and has received a U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) for the fiscal year 
2021 CIP project.  This project is intended to improve water service flows, improve customer water 
quality, improve fire protection and reduce water losses from leaks, while minimizing maintenance 
for years to come.  The project site identified for fiscal year 2021 includes water main 
replacements in Old River Road and Woodside Road. The project encompasses two separate 
sites: 
 


Old River Road – this portion of the project includes replacing the existing aged 6-inch water 
line with new 6-inch water line in Old River Road from the intersection of River Road and 
Highway 116 to the intersection of Old River Road and Morningside Drive.  Also included at 
this site is the replacement of the undersized 4-inch water line with new 6-inch water line in 
Bonita Avenue from Morningside Drive to River Road.  This project site will replace a total of 
approximately 3,566 feet of water main, 31 water services, and 1 commercial fire service line 
and installation of 10 new fire hydrants.  Fire hydrants will be constructed approximately every 
300 feet within the project boundaries. 
 
Woodland Road – this portion of the project includes replacing the existing aged 6-inch water 
line and the undersized 2-inch water line in Woodland Road from the intersection of Woodland 
Road and Armstrong Woods Road to approximately 14200 Woodland Road. Also included at 
this site is the replacement of the undersized 4-inch water main connection with new 8-inch 
pipe between Woodland Road and Sunset Avenue.  This project site will replace a total of 
approximately 2,108 feet of 6-inch, 4-inch and 2-inch water main with new 8-inch water main 
between Armstrong Woods Road and the cross connection to the tank and 6-inch water line 
from the tank connection to the end of the line.  It will also include replacing 27 water services 
and the installation of 5 new fire hydrants.  Fire hydrants will be constructed approximately 
every 300 feet within the project boundaries. 


 



http://www.coastlandcivil.com/





 


Installation of water mains will be open cut trench and/or directional drilling where appropriate.  In 
areas utilizing directional drilling as a means of construction, HPDE material would need to be 
used.  In areas of open cut trenching, either HDPE or PVC material could be used.  Proximity to 
existing sewer and gas lines will also be a determination in pipe material selection.  In areas where 
the new water line must be installed less than 10 feet horizontally from the existing sewer or gas 
line, HDPE or Class 200 PVC will need to be used.  Final pipe material and construction method 
will need to be finalized during the design phase.   For open cut trench methods, trench backfill 
material and paving will per County of Sonoma Department of Transportation and Public Works 
Standards 219 A and B (Pavement Cut Policy and Trench Backfill and Paving Details.)  All fire 
hydrants and water services will be installed per District standards. 
 
The plans will be prepared such that the work in Old River Road will be the base bid and the work 
in Woodland Drive will be a bid alternate.  This allows the District some flexibility in the award if 
construction prices come in too high. 
 
Pursuant to CEQA, we anticipate that the project can qualify for a CEQA Categorical Exemption 
(e.g., CEQA Guideline Section 15301 – Existing Facilities, and 15302 – Replacement or 
Reconstruction) and that a CEQA Initial Study/Negative Declaration will not be required.  
Additionally, as the project is receiving funding it must comply with federal requirements of NEPA 
and Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. 
 
Based on our understanding of the project we propose the following scope of work: 
 


SCOPE OF WORK - DESIGN 
 
Task 1 – Meetings with District 
 
Immediately after the Notice to Proceed is issued by the District, Coastland will schedule a kick-
off meeting with District staff to gather all background information and complete a thorough site 
review with District Staff to ensure we are aware of all project goals and constraints.  Included in 
this task will be one (1) project kick-off / pre-design meeting to discuss project goals and 
coordination efforts and three (3) progress design review meetings.  
 
Task 2 – Background Information 
 
We will assemble all of the available District, County and Sonoma County Water Agency 
information. We will conduct a field review the project area to assess existing site characteristics 
and general site conditions, identify existing utilities and take digital photos.  Our site review will 
enable us to identify any unusual or special conditions that may affect the project design or 
construction.   
 
Task 3 – Coordinate with Agencies 
 
We will coordinate with outside utility companies to ensure that all existing facilities, both 
underground and overhead, are identified accurately during the design phase.  This task will 
include writing letters to PG&E, AT&T, Comcast, Ferrell Gas, Sonoma County (storm drain and 
retaining walls), and the Sonoma County Water Agency (sanitary sewer) informing them of the 
project and requesting their facility drawings.  Due to the proximity of the existing sewer main 
throughout the project, we also anticipate coordination with the State Water Board to obtain 
waivers for horizontal separation distances between the existing sewer and new water lines. 







 


 
Under this task we will follow up with each utility provider by preparing submittal packages to each 
so they can verify the accuracy of their facilities and the need for relocation. In addition to the 
agencies listed above we will prepare a submittal to the fire chief at the Russian River Fire District 
for review of the proposed fire hydrant locations. 
 
As part of our background research for this proposal, we reviewed the State’s Geotracker website 
to determine if any area within or adjacent to the project has known areas of soil or groundwater 
contamination.  Per our research, the property at 14058 Armstrong Woods Road (approximately 
250’ south of the Armstrong Woods Rd-Woodland Dr intersection) is a cleanup site for a leaking 
underground storage tank (LUST).  The records show that 3 underground storage tanks were 
removed in 2000 and monitoring wells were installed.  The cleanup status for the site is listed as 
“open-remediation”.  Accordingly, we will coordinate with the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board for any special provisions that need to be included with the CIP PS&E documents (i.e. 
provisions in the project specifications regarding how to handle contaminated soil, if encountered). 
 
For work proposed within the County right-of-way, we will coordinate with the County PRMD to 
obtain an Encroachment Permit.  We have included time for coordination via email and phone 
conversations, as well as a one in office meeting with the County PRMD.  
 
Task 4 – Topographical Survey 
 
Cinquini & Passarino (CPI) will be a subconsultant to Coastland and will complete a topographic 
survey to support the design efforts for this project.  Topographic survey will include all necessary 
work to produce a topographic map, including features such as, but not limited to; building corners 
and elevations , edge pavement, water meters, sewer cleanouts, valves, manholes (including rim, 
invert and pipe information) , utility markings on the pavement, utility poles, driveway and doorway 
locations, sidewalks, trees four (4) inches and larger, retaining wall or decorative walls, and any 
other pertinent information that could apply to the project during design. 
 
Topographic survey will be provided on North American Vertical Datum of 1988 as established 
by GNSS observations and horizontally relate to California Coordinate System of 1983, Epoch 
2017.50. 
 
Topographic surveys will be performed within the apparent public right-of-way throughout the 
project reach.   A boundary survey is not included within this scope of work 
 
Task 5 – Environmental 
 
WRA will be a subconsultant to Coastland to complete the CEQA and NEPA environmental 
clearance efforts.  The District will serve as the CEQA Lead Agency and HUD will serve as the 
NEPA Lead Agency.  WRA will perform the following tasks: 
 
CEQA Categorical Exemption 
 
Pursuant to CEQA, WRA, Inc. (WRA) anticipates that the project can qualify for a CEQA 
Categorical Exemption (e.g., CEQA Guideline Section 15301 – Existing Facilities, and 15302 – 
Replacement or Reconstruction) and that a CEQA Initial Study/Negative Declaration will not be 
required.  WRA will prepare a CEQA Notice of Exemption (NOE) for the project which describes 
the construction and operational characteristics of the project and its CEQA exemption status.  







 


The NOE will include an Addendum that will provide the rationale for the application of the 
Categorical Exemption based on the project description and Article 19 of the CEQA Guidelines 
(Categorical Exemptions).  The Addendum will also explain why the project does not meet any 
applicable exceptions to Categorical Exemptions. The NOE will then be filed with the Sonoma 
County Clerk.  Projects that are categorically exempt from CEQA are not subject to the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) CEQA filing fee, and do not require a CDFW “no effect” 
determination (Cal Code Regs., tit. 14, §§ 15260 -15333; Fish & Game Code § 711.4, subd.  
(d)(1)).  One round of review of the Categorical Exemption and Addendum by Coastland and the 
District is assumed. 
 
Preparation of HUD Environmental Review Categorical Exclusion Form 
 
WRA will prepare a draft of HUD’s Categorical Exclusion Form pursuant to 24 CFR Part 58.35(a).  
With Coastland’s assistance, WRA will address project description and preliminary design 
information questions in the Categorical Exclusion Form.  The Categorical Exclusion Form will 
confirm the project’s compliance with 24 CFR §50.4 and §58.6 Laws and Authorities, including: 
airport hazards, coastal barrier resources, flood insurance, clean air, coastal management zone, 
contamination and toxic substances, endangered species, explosive and flammable hazards, 
farmlands protection, floodplain management, historic preservation, noise abatement and control, 
sole source aquifers, wetlands protection, wild and scenic rivers, and environmental justice.  The 
Categorical Exclusion Form will be supported by the Cultural Resources Report described below.  
No other technical reports are included in this scope of work.  One round of review of the 
Categorical Exclusion Form and supporting information by Coastland and the District is assumed. 
 
Cultural Resources Report 
 
WRA has retained Alta Archaeological Consulting (ALTA) out of Santa Rosa to prepare the 
cultural resources survey. As the project is receiving funding it must comply with federal 
requirements of NEPA and Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. The scope of 
work includes four tasks: (1) records research; (2) Native American consultation; (3) field survey; 
and (4) preparation of an Archaeological Survey Report(s). 
 


Records Search 
 
ALTA will perform a records search at the California Historical Resources Information 
System, Northwest Information Center (NWIC). The NWIC is the primary repository for 
cultural resources information that covers an 18-county area including Sonoma County. The 
purpose of archival research is to identify any previously conducted archaeological surveys 
or known archaeological sites located on the subject properties and within a one-half mile 
radius of the project area(s). In addition, ethnographic and historic literature will be reviewed 
to create background contextual information relevant to the project area. 
 
Native American Consultation 
 
ALTA will consult with the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) to request a 
review the Sacred Lands Files for any resources that may be present within the project 
area(s) and to provide a list of local Native American tribes. ALTA will contact in writing 
Native American groups or individuals identified by the NAHC to inform them of the 
proposed project and to solicit their concerns about the undertaking. Comments and 







 


information provided by the Native American community and government agencies will be 
provided in the draft and final reports.  
 
Field Inventory 
 
ALTA staff will conduct an on-site field reconnaissance of the project area. The project area 
will be intensively examined for cultural resources. A complete inventory entails systematic 
pedestrian examination of the ground surface. In accordance with established standards, 
field reconnaissance will be conducted using transects spaced no more than 20 meters 
apart. Transect interval spacing will be reduced in areas depending upon the sensitivity or 
the parcel. No artifacts will be collected as part of this reconnaissance. The field crew will 
maintain daily field notes and the findings will be made available immediately following the 
field investigation.  
 
All archaeological resources identified within the project area will be recorded using the 
standard State of California Department of Parks and Recreation Archaeological Site Forms. 
A cultural resource shall have a minimum age of 45 years. As cultural resources are located 
during survey, approximate boundaries will be delineated and the location of the resource 
plotted on topographic maps. Site boundaries will be identified based on the surface extent 
of cultural materials and/or features. Global Positioning System (GPS) mapping of each site 
location will be undertaken. Site recordation will include site and feature mapping, 
completing of site record forms, and photography. All photographs will be done in a digital 
format. An evaluation of the impact agents and site condition will be noted for each site in 
the project area. As appropriate, a limited narrative will be provided to further describe the 
nature, extent, and location of resources. 
 
Archaeological Survey Report 
 
ALTA will prepare an Archaeological Survey Report (ASR) in accordance with the standard 
guidelines in Archaeological Resource Management Reports (1990). The ASR will include 
a summary of the identification efforts undertaken in the study, consultation with agencies 
and local governments, provide a summary of archaeological methods and findings, and 
make preliminary recommendations for appropriate treatment and/or evaluation of 
resources. The archaeological survey report will be sufficient to satisfy Federal regulatory 
requirements including the Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act and state 
requirements defined in CEQA. 


 
Task 6 –50% PS&E 
 
Following our background research, utility coordination, survey and field review, we will develop 
preliminary design documents for the water line and service replacement.  We will prepare a 50% 
PS&E submittal package which will include 50% plans, preliminary specifications and a 
preliminary engineer’s estimate of construction cost.  The plans will include all water main and 
services improvements, as well as any needed asphalt overlay and striping plans, as applicable 
 
We will provide the District with three (3) sets of full size plans, preliminary specifications and a 
preliminary engineer’s estimate of probable construction costs.  We will include submittals to the 
County and utility providers to ensure their respective facilities are accurately shown on the plans. 
 
  







 


Task 7 – 90% PS&E 
 
Following the District’s review of the 50% submittal, we will prepare the 90% PS&E submittal.  
The submittal will address all comments on the 50% submittal and will essentially be a 
comprehensive design package.  The plans will include details for all improvements.  The 
specifications will be complete.  The 90% submittal will include three (3) sets of full-size plans, 
specifications and an engineer’s cost estimate.  Also included in this submittal will be roadway 
improvement limits and the proposed repair methods based on coordination with the County.   
 
At the 90% complete stage, we will also make a submittal to the County for the encroachment 
permit. 
 
Coastland’s Construction Management Department will perform a constructability review of the 
contract documents.  Through this review, we will help minimize claims and potential change 
orders.   
 
Task 8 - Final PS&E 
 
Following the review of the 90% submittal, Coastland will prepare the final construction drawings, 
specifications and estimate.  We will provide a 100% submittal to the District for a final review to 
verify comments have been addressed prior to producing the final bid documents.  Upon final 
District review, we will provide stamped and signed drawings and specifications for bidding 
purposes.  We will provide the District with two (2) hard copy sets of the final bid documents as 
well as an electronic copy in PDF format.   
 
Task 9 –Bid Support  
 
Coastland will provide the Notice to Bidders to the District for advertisement in local papers.  We 
will also reproduce and distribute the construction documents to local plan rooms and contractors.  
During the bidding process, we will answer any questions that may arise and maintain a phone 
log of inquiries.  We will prepare any addenda that may be necessary.  Coastland will also conduct 
the bid opening, tabulate results and review the apparent low bidder’s bid package.  As part of 
the bid review we will ensure the contractor is in good standing with the State Contractor’s 
Licensing Board, verify that the prime contractor and all subcontractors are duly licensed with the 
Department of Industrial Relations, and verify necessary bonds are provided.  
 
Once the review of the bid has been completed we will prepare a bid summary and forward it to 
the District with our recommendation for bid award.  Please note that the time associated with this 
task does not include any time necessary for bid protests.  If a bid protest is issued by any of the 
other bidders, we can provide this as extra service on a time and materials basis, as the time 
necessary to process the protest is unknown. 
 


OPTIONAL TASKS 
 
The following work is not included in our proposal.  However, Coastland would be pleased to 
provide these services if the District desires:  
 


  Geotechnical investigations. 
  Boundary survey/right of way determination 







 


  Permitting fees. 
  Potholing of utility locations, associated survey or coordination. 
  Public participation efforts. 
  Meetings beyond those noted above. 
  Specific species surveys. 
  Permit applications with state and federal agencies 
  Construction Management and Inspection services 
  Construction staking to be provided by contractor. 


 
 
SCHEDULE 
 
We understand the District’s goal is to have these projects constructed next construction season 
if funding is secured.  After assessing the project site, discussing the project with District staff, 
and considering our specific approach to this project, we estimate we will be able to complete the 
design portion of the project in 8 months and get it to bid in the spring of 2021, assuming no major 
changes in the scope of work described herein.   
 
 
WORK ESTIMATE - DESIGN 
 
Based on our scope of work, we are proposing that the design services associated with this project 
be completed for a not-to-exceed amount of $144,900 (see attached Work Estimate).  The amount 
quoted is assuming that all of the work for this project will fall under the scope of work as previously 
described.  If additional work is necessary that falls outside of this scope of work, we can either 
re-negotiate a new scope of work or provide these services on a time and materials basis per our 
adopted schedule of hourly rates. 
 
Please also note that in the not-to-exceed amount, we have included an estimated amount of 
$1,777 for reimbursable expenses (i.e. printing, plotting, mileage, final mylars, copies and 
binding).  These reimbursable costs will be billed at cost plus 15%. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to serve the District in completing this work.  If you have questions 
or need a change to the proposed scope of work please contact John Wanger or me at your 
earliest convenience. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Heidi Utterback, P.E. 
Supervising Engineer, Principal 
 
cc: John Wanger 
Enclosures:  Work estimates 
 
  







 


 


$195 $195 $160 $140 $140 $165 $90
1 MEETINGS WITH DISTRICT


Kick off  Meeting (1) 4 4 8 $1,420
Design Progress Meetings (3) 12 12 24 $4,260


Subtotal 32 $5,680
2 BACKGROUND INFORMATION


Background Information 2 4 8 14 $2,000
Field Review 6 6 12 $2,130
Photo Log 4 4 $640


Subtotal 30 $4,770
3 COORDINATE WITH AGENCIES


Coordination with County/SCWA/RWQCB 6 16 6 8 36 $5,690
Coordinate with Water Board (DHS) 2 4 2 8 $1,310
Coordinate with Utility Companies 2 6 12 20 $2,840


Subtotal 64 $9,840
4 TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY


Topographical Survey 0 $35,662 CPI
Coordinate w/ surveyor 2 4 6 $950


Subtotal 6 $36,612
5 ENVIRONMENTAL


CEQA/NEPA 0 $25,972 WRA
Coordinate w/environmental consultant 2 4 4 10 $1,590


Subtotal 10 $27,562
6 50% IMPROVEMENT PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS & ESTIMATE


Improvement Plans 6 16 8 88 118 $17,170
Preliminary Specifications 2 4 6 1 13 $1,960
Preliminary Cost Estimate 2 2 8 12 $1,830
QC Review 4 4 8 $1,440


Subtotal 151 $22,400
7 90% IMPROVEMENT PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS & ESTIMATE


Improvement Plans 4 12 6 64 86 $12,500
Specifications 2 4 6 1 13 $1,960
Cost Estimate 1 2 8 11 $1,635
QC Review 4 4 8 $1,440


Subtotal 118 $17,535
8 FINAL PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS & ESTIMATE


Improvement Plans 4 8 4 40 56 $8,220
Specifications 2 2 4 1 9 $1,360
Cost Estimate 1 2 6 9 $1,355
QC Review 4 4 8 $1,440


Subtotal 82 $12,375
9 BID SUPPORT


Bid Admin/Questions 4 6 4 8 22 $3,020
Addenda (1) 2 4 2 4 2 14 $2,050
Bid Opening 2 2 $390
Bid analysis/recommendation 2 2 2 6 $890


Subtotal 44 $6,350
Direct Costs (repro, mileage, etc.) $1,777


Total Design Cost 68 12 118 56 256 12 15 473 $144,900


Proposal for Engineering Services


QA/QC


Sweetwater Springs Water District


Asst. 
Engr.


DESIGN WORK ESTIMATE 


TASK TOTAL            FEEAdmin TOTAL 
HOURS


Const. 
Mgr.


Project Role & RateTask Information


NOTESSupv. Engr Sr. Engr. Sr. CAD 
Designer


FY 2021 CIP Project

































































		Item V-B - Approval of Coastland Contract for Design and Planning for FY 2020-2021 CIP

		Meeting Date: July 2, 2020



		Item V-B.1 - Resolution 20-18  Approval of Contract for Design and Planning of FY 2020-2021 CIP

		Item V-B.2 - SSWD FY2021 CIP Proposal

		Project Background/Understanding



		Item V-B.3 - Coastland contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT: Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Contract Discussion and 
Approval 
   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion 
and Approval of a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Contract by Resolution 20-16. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $30,074 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has budgeted $30,000 for a Local Hazard Mitigation  (LHMP) to 
help the District qualify for FEMA grants.  The General Manager has worked 
with Harris and Associates in my time with Paradise Irrigation District after 
the Camp Fire.  Harris helped PID through the FEMA process.  The firm has a 
strong reputation and is well recommended.  The timeline for the work 
completion is April 2021.  The report and recommendations will tentatively be 
presented to the Board at the May 2021 meeting for discussion.  A contract 
for the LHMP project has been developed and will be signed by the GM.  A 
draft resolution is included for the review and approval of the selected LHMP 
specialist and contract at the tonight’s Board meeting.   
 
 
 







RESOLUTION 20-16 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
FOR A LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN WITH HARRIS AND ASSOCIATES AND 


AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN  
 


 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District has contracted with Harris and 


Associates for a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) for Sweetwater Springs Water District; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District wishes to use the LHMP to qualify for FEMA Grant 
opportunities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Harris and Associates is the best placed professional services 
company to provide the services for this project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Harris and Associates has submitted a proposal for these services 
attached as Exhibit A; and 
 


WHEREAS, staff has reviewed this proposal and finds it fair and complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, District Council has reviewed and approved the agreement 
 


 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The Agreement for Professional Services for a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan with 
Harris and Associates, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby 
approved in the sum of $30,074; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on , 2020, 
by the following vote: 
 







Resolution 20-16. Agreement for Professional Services with Harris and Associates for a 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  
July 2, 2020          2 
 


 


 
 
 


   
    
    


   
  
 Richard Holmer          
 President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Larry Spillane       







 


June 22, 2020 


 


Mr. Ed Fortner 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 


17081 Hwy. 116 


Guerneville, CA 95446 
 


PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES FOR THE PREPARATION 


OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 


Dear Mr. Fortner, 


Harris & Associates (Harris) recognizes that advanced planning is important in reducing risks associated with natural 


disasters to critical infrastructure that our communities rely on. The Harris team is prepared to prepare a Local 


Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) for the Sweetwater Springs Water District (District). We are eager to work with the 


District and we offer the following benefits: 


A Streamlined Process. The Harris Team is prepared to deliver an efficiently-prepared Plan for FEMA approval. 


This will enable the District to apply for grants that require a Mitigation Plan in 2021, including the Hazard 


Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), the Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Grant Program (which is being replaced by 


the Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) Grant Program, and the Flood Mitigation Assistance 


(FMA) Grant Program.  


An Integrated Risk Management Approach. Project Manager Eric Vaughan has over 10 years of experience 


leading integrated teams of engineers, planners, and analysts assessing and managing the risk of utility infrastructure. 


He has managed risk and resilience projects for jurisdictions and special districts and agencies throughout California 


to develop implementation plans that feature robust program controls, information systems, financial strategies, and 


inclusive stakeholder engagement elements that all align to meet risk reduction goals and priorities over time.  


Comprehensive Knowledge of FEMA and Cal OES Programs and LHMP Experience. The Harris team features 


a highly experienced senior planner in Wendy Boemecke. Wendy is a true expert in hazard mitigation planning. She 


has worked with hundreds of local jurisdictions to prepare FEMA compliant Hazard Mitigation Plans. She brings 


over 20 years of experience (18 years with Cal OES and 13 years of mitigation planning). Wendy’s breadth of 


experience, coupled with her extensive network within Cal OES and FEMA, affords her a unique ability to deliver a 


process that is properly resourced, prepared, and reviewed to support the District’s goals for this project. The Harris 


team understands how to conform to Hazard Mitigation Planning Grant requirements, develop a clear and robust 


spatial risk analysis, and secure a speedy approval with minimal requests for additional information.  


We look forward to collaborating with you to provide innovative solutions that will ultimately protect and improve 


the quality of life for future generations. 


Sincerely, 


Harris & Associates, Inc. 


 


Michael McCormick 


Division President, Strategic Advisory Services 


925-499-3505 ● MichaelMcCormick@WeAreHarris.com 



mailto:Eric.Vaughan@WeAreHarris.com





KEY PERSONNEL 


Brief introductions of our key personnel are listed on the following pages. Full resumes for our team can be found in 


the appendix of this proposal.  


Project Manager, Eric Vaughan – Eric brings a proven track record of success to the team, working with a 


broad range of special districts, utilities, and municipalities. Most recently, he has been leading the development 


of the Hazard Mitigation Plan for the City of Watsonville. It is critical that the District’s LHMP includes a robust 


implementation plan, one that responds to current risk such as flooding and is supported by realistic funding 


options. This is what Eric is passionate about. He is on the team to help the District put in place an effective plan 


for achieving real progress against its hazard mitigation goals. Eric brings a big-picture perspective to make sure 


that program controls, information systems, financial strategies, and stakeholder engagement all align to meet the 


County’s hazard mitigation goals and priorities over time. He will be drawing from his hazard mitigation planning 


work with the Cities Watsonville and Long Beach and the Counties of Sacramento, Marin, and Calaveras. 


Principal-In-Charge, Michael McCormick – A leader and problem solver with an extensive background in 


planning, hazard mitigation, climate change, and sustainability, Michael brings his breadth and depth of 


experience, along with deep relationships across the landscape of stakeholders, reviewers, and regulators to this 


project. Michael joined Harris from the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research where he was the Senior 


Planning Advisor, where he worked with the administration, legislature, California Air Resources Board, 


California Natural Resources Agency, and Cal OES to author guidance related to climate change, including as a 


lead author of the General Plan Guidelines, including the Safety Element, which includes guidance on connecting 


local planning initiatives to local hazard mitigation plans and new mandates on climate adaptation and resilience, 


as part of the State Hazard Mitigation Team, and various other local focused initiatives.  


Senior Planner, Wendy Boemecke – Wendy is a true expert in hazard mitigation planning. She has worked with 


hundreds of local jurisdictions to prepare compliant LHMPs, most recently as the Lead Planner for the 


development of Watsonville’s LHMP. With over 30 years of experience (18 years with Cal OES and 13 years of 


mitigation planning), Wendy has reviewed and contributed to over 300 different types of LHMPs. She has 


supported dozens of FEMA disaster recovery projects (alternate projects, improved projects, and change in scope 


of work) for environmental and historical (NEPA/CEQA) compliance. While coordinating with local government, 


consultants, special districts, and school districts, Wendy facilitated development of required plans in compliance 


with FEMA. Wendy also provided specific training to local government and other entities on the LHMP process.  


Hazard & Risk Analyst, Carolyn Yvellez – Carolyn is passionate about building community resilience. She is 


proficient in the tools that will enable the District to fully assess its vulnerability to existing and consider potential 


future hazards due to climate change. She brings advanced analytic ability in geospatial and statistical methods. 


For the City of Watsonville, she recently employed ArcGIS and Hazus to estimate potential losses and impacts 


from the City’s hazards of concern. She is also proficient in using the State’s tools, Myplan and Myhazards as 


well as incorporating key sources of data such as FEMA FIRM maps, CALFIRE FRAP data, CASIL, and Cal-


adapt, among others. She is also experienced in interpreting climate change models and assessing the resulting 


potential impacts.  


GIS Analyst, Randy Deodat – Randy brings over eight years of experience with geographic information 


systems. He works extensively in database design and management, with Global Positioning System (GPS), and 


with GIS customization using Python coding and provides GIS support for mobile software integration, spatial 


analysis, and other online web map and mobile applications for a range of diverse projects. Randy is the GIS 


Analyst for the City of Watsonville LHMP and develops map templates and geo-spatial data management systems 


for hazard and vulnerability data layers using ArcGIS. Randy’s technical training includes GIS-related software 


such as ArcMap 9.X and 10.X, ArcCatalog 9.X and 10.X, ArcPad 8.0 in Trimble GeoXH GPS, Trimple GPS 


Pathfinder, Urban Footprint, Google Earth Engine, and other ArcGIS applications including Explorer, Portal, 


Survey123, and Dashboards.  


 







SCOPE OF WORK 


The scope of work for updating the District’s LHMP includes establishing the planning process, conducting 


a risk assessment, developing a prioritized set of mitigation strategies, preparing an implementation plan, 


and facilitating a smooth review and adoption process. The Harris team will build on the District’s previous 


planning efforts and incorporate how the District’s operations have evolved over time in terms of risk and 


development. Each of these steps ad associated deliverables will be conducted in accordance with the 


District’s stated goals, as well as relevant local, State, and Federal requirements, resulting in a FEMA 


approved LHMP. The details, task leads, and deliverables for each step in the process are described in this 


section.  


Task 1: Planning Process 
The purpose of this task is to lay the groundwork for a successful planning process. The Harris Team will 


accomplish this by identifying key stakeholders and planning participants, establishing documentation 


procedures, and collecting existing and relevant information.  


 


Task 1.1: Project Management 
Following a Notice to Proceed, Eric Vaughan will work with Carolyn Yvellez to set up the project 


management process, including reporting and communication protocols. Eric and Carolyn will meet regularly 


to ensure the planning process is meeting key milestones and is completed on time and within budget. Eric 


will facilitate a virtual pre-meeting with the Project Manager, so that the process is effectively resourced. 


The purpose of the pre-meeting will be to: 


 Review and provide information about the LHMP process 


 Establish documentation protocols that are required for Cal OES and FEMA approval 


 Identify required participants for the LHMP to comply with FEMA requirements 


 Communicate and send invitations to key stakeholders and the Public to participate in the LHMP, 


and 


 Determine a kick-off meeting date and discuss scheduling of LHMP meetings to comply with FEMA 


requirements 


 


Task 1.2: Planning Committee Meetings and Public Engagement 
Following the pre-meeting, Eric will collaborate with the Project Manager to organize the LHMP Planning 


Committee with stakeholders and identified subject-matter experts. Harris will facilitate three virtual 


meetings with the Planning Committee. Electronic copies of meeting materials and draft deliverables will 


be provided to the Project Manager in advance of conference call meetings.  


 Planning Committee Meeting #1: Kick-off and Hazard Identification Meeting. Eric will facilitate a 


kick-off meeting that will include a discussion of project purpose, process, goals, individual roles, 


timeline, key background information and data-requests, and relevant hazards to consider in the 


plan.   


 Planning Committee Meeting #2: Risk Assessment. Eric, with support from Carolyn, will solicit 


input on components of the risk assessment, including the types of critical infrastructure in hazard-


prone areas.  


 Public Workshop #1: Eric will facilitate a virtual workshop that is open to the public to solicit input 


on the risk assessment, mitigation goals, and the mitigation priorities. 







 Planning Committee Meeting #3: Mitigation Action Prioritization. Eric, with support from Wendy, 


will solicit input and feedback on the selection of mitigation actions and lead the group in 


corresponding prioritization exercise.  


 Public Workshop #2: Eric will facilitate a virtual workshop that is open to the public to solicit input 


on the first full draft of the Plan. 


 


Task 1.3: Review and Incorporation 
The Harris team will collect and review existing planning documents including regional and State plans 


(i.e. California State Hazard Mitigation Plan) and District plans (i.e. Capital Improvement Plans), technical 


reports, and studies and compile a list of existing goals to seek alignment with ongoing efforts.  


 


Task 1 Deliverable(s):  


 Invitation, agenda, presentation, meeting minutes, attendance sheet for each meeting 


 


Task 2: Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment 
The purpose of this task is to provide an analysis of how specific locations, assets, and facilities are 


vulnerable to prevalent hazards. The risk assessment is comprised of two primary steps: hazard analysis 


and risk assessment. Since risk exposure will vary across the District, the assessment will have geospatial 


and economic analyses that articulate the differential nature of vulnerability. The assessment will 


incorporate information and data obtained from the District.  


 


Task 2.1: Assess Hazards  
Eric will collaborate with the Project Manager and the Planning Committee to review the proposed set of 


hazards of concern. Carolyn, with support from Randy Deodat, will prepare profiles for each of the 


identified hazards, including a description of their spatial extents (hazard maps), severity and magnitude, 


potential impacts, previous occurrences, and probability of future events. Using the best available science, 


Carolyn will discuss the amplifying impacts of climate change on natural hazards. The hazard profiles will 


each include a specific description of changes in its characteristics such as extent, severity, and frequency 


resulting from climate change.  


 


Task 2.2: Risk Assessment  
With support from Wendy Boemecke and Eric, Carolyn will conduct a risk assessment with respect to the 


selected hazards for the District’s critical infrastructure and operations. The risk assessment includes two 


steps: 


 


Step 1: Review and update District assets.  


Eric, with support from Carolyn, will work with the Project Manager to review and identify key assets. 


Based on data availability, the team will identify:  


 Number, types, and values of existing infrastructure and facilities in the planning area and in 


mapped hazard areas, based on GIS analysis 


 Economic impact of potential losses 


 Proposed development/structures in identified hazard areas 


 







Step 2: Perform Risk Analysis 


Carolyn, with support from Wendy, will evaluate hazard risks to District assets by estimating potential 


losses for identified hazards. Some hazards, including flooding and earthquakes, can be evaluated using the 


latest version of the FEMA Hazus tool, updated in May 2019. The non-Hazus hazards that are selected will 


be evaluated using GIS methods based on best practices. The Harris team will develop risk maps as 


communication tools to inform stakeholders. Carolyn will employ tools such as Cal-Adapt and MyPlan to 


assess risks associated with climate change. The results of the analysis will be summarized by a set of 


problem statements that articulate the specific forms of vulnerability to all identified hazards.  


 


Task 2 Deliverable(s): 


 Prioritized list of hazards and hazard profiles 


 Hazus application analysis for flooding and earthquake risk 


 Risk assessment for critical infrastructure and facilities 


 Electronic initial draft of Element B: Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment and compiled 


supporting documentation 


 


Task 3: Mitigation Strategy 
The purpose of this task is to develop an action plan for mitigating the risks identified in Task 2. This 


critical step is rooted in the existing capabilities of the District. The Mitigation Strategy will be organized 


through a set of high-level goals that represent what the District aims to achieve through its LHMP.  


 


Task 3.1: Goals 
Eric, with support from Wendy, will collaborate with the Project Manager and Planning Committee to review 


and update as necessary the goals that represent the long-tern outcomes the County seeks to accomplish by 


implementing its mitigation strategies. The team will review existing planning documents collected in Task 


1 and other recently completed LHMPs and compile a list of existing goals to seek alignment with ongoing 


efforts. The team will organize mitigation strategies in a way that encourages short- and long-term risk 


reduction and infrastructural and operational resilience.  


 


Task 3.2: Mitigation Actions 
Carolyn, with support from Eric and Wendy, will collaborate with the Project Manager and the Planning 


Committee to identify, organize, and characterize potential mitigation across the comprehensive range of 


hazards prioritized by the District in response to the vulnerability problem statements from the Risk 


Assessment. Hazard mitigation actions will be developed from existing capabilities and include new or 


improved capabilities where needed. Although the focus will be on reducing long-term risk and building 


resilience of the District, the Harris teal will also work with the Project Manager to identify shorter-term 


actions where appropriate. Mitigation actions will also be characterized in terms of potential co-benefits to 


more than one type of vulnerability or benefit. Mitigation actions will also be organized according to the 


Disaster Mitigation Act and FEMA categories, which include prevention, property protection, emergency 


services, structural projects, natural resources protection, and public information programs.  


 


Task 3.2: Public Survey (Online) 
The public needs to involve in the planning process. If there are no responses to public invitations to 


participate in public workshops, Carolyn will work with Eric to develop a survey that allows the public to 







voice their preference on mitigation actions that protect water utility infrastructure from future risk. The 


survey can be posted on the District’s website so the public can access the survey virtually.  


 


Task 3.3: Action Plan 
Eric will collaborate with the Project Manager and the Planning Committee to prioritize mitigation actions 


in terms of their overall benefit, ability to reduce risks and vulnerability for priority hazards, and support 


the District’s hazard mitigation goals. The strategy will also identify the position, office, department, or 


agency responsible for implementing the mitigation action, identify potential funding sources and expected 


timing. Harris will develop a format to be used for the mitigation actions that are identified, so there will be 


consistency in the LHMP.  


 


Task 3 Deliverable(s): 


 List or relevant goals and objectives from existing plans 


 Final set of goals for the LHMP 


 Matrix of potential mitigation actions 


 Online Survey 


 Prioritized list of mitigation actions to be included in the LHMP 


 Electronic files of draft Element C: Mitigation Strategy and supporting documentation 


 


Task 4: Review and Adopt the Plan 
The purpose of this task is to complete a full draft of the plan and submit to the necessary parties.  


 


Task 4.1: Present Full Draft of Plan  
The Harris Team will present the full LHMP draft to the Project Manager and the Planning Committee. The 


Harris Team will review all input and feedback and revise the LHMP according to direction provided by 


the Project Manager. 


 


The Harris Team will work with the Project Manager to disseminate the draft plan through its webpage and 


social media channels for review. Harris staff will facilitate a public virtual workshop to solicit feedback on 


the full draft of the Plan. 


 


Task 4.2: Incorporate Public Feedback and Plan Adoption 
Carolyn will review all public input and prepare a revised draft of the LHMP. When complete, Wendy will 


submit a revised draft to Cal OES for review. The Harris team will communicate directly with Cal OES and 


work with the Project Manager to resolve any issues that arise during the review process. After 


incorporating any changes from the Cal OES review, the LHMP will be submitted to FEMA for review. 


The FEMA approved LHMP will finally need to be submitted to the Board of Directors for formal 


adoption.  


 


Task 4 Deliverable(s): 


 Electronic files of the full Public Review Draft 


 Electronic files of the complete Cal OES Review Draft 


 







PROJECT SCHEDULE 


The Harris team understands the urgency for completing the LHMP in an expedited fashion. We are prepared to 


deliver an accelerated but thorough process. We propose the following timeline, which can be modified according 


to the preferences of the Project Manager. 


 


  Key Tasks 
Meetings & 


Workshops 
Key Milestones 


Month 1 


 Pre-Meeting with Project 


Manager 


 Existing Document Review 


 Identify Required Participants 


 Invite Plan Participants 


 Establish Planning Committee 


 Document the Planning 


Process 


Meeting #1 


Fully Executed 


Professional Services 


Agreement 


Month 2 


 Assess Hazards of Concern 


 Identify and Review District 


Assets 


 
Draft Element A: 


Planning Process 


Month 3 
Conduct Risk Assessment 


Meeting #2 
Draft Element B: Risk 


Assessment 


Month 4 


 Develop Mitigation Goals 


 Develop Online Survey 


 Prioritize Mitigation Actions 


 Develop Action Plan  


Meeting #3 


Public Workshop #1 


Prioritized List of 


Mitigation Strategies 


Month 5 Public Review of Plan Public Workshop #2 


Draft Element C: 


Mitigation Strategies 


Complete Full Public 


Review Draft 


Month 6 
Cal OES Review 


 
Cal OES Review 


Draft 


Month 7 FEMA Review  FEMA Review Draft 


Month 8 Board Adoption  
Approved and 


Adopted LHMP 


 


 


 


 


 


 







COST PROPOSAL 


The budget schedule below lists the hourly rates and hours for all our proposed personnel. Due to the 


efficiency of this highly skilled team, we commit to completing this project with a not-to-exceed total cost 


of $30,074. 


  Project Manager 
Senior 


Planner  
Hazard & Risk 


Analyst 
GIS 


Analyst 
Cost 


Hourly Rate $243  $208  $125  $145    


Task 1: Planning process 14 9 25 0 $8,399  


Task 2: Hazard Identification 
and Risk Assessment 


4 4 62 6 
$10,424  


Task 3: Mitigation Strategy 10 10 36 0 $9,010  


Task 4: Review & Adopt the 
Plan 


2 6 8 0 
$2,734  


Totals 30 29 131 6 $30,567  


 


 


 







APPENDIX A: RESUMES 


Eric Vaughan 


PROJECT MANAGER 


Eric leads Harris & Associates’ Risk + Resilience Team and brings over 10 years of experience managing 


large programs and projects for community benefit. He brings a big-picture perspective with the goal of 


instilling an action-minded and results-oriented focus on hazard mitigation and disaster recovery 


planning. Most recently, Eric has been working with several municipalities to develop hazard mitigation 


plans, identify hazard mitigation grants, and implement hazard mitigation projects. Eric incorporates his 


understanding of the disaster recovery context into his hazard mitigation planning support as well. He 


has supported disaster recovery efforts across the globe and most recently in California for the City of 


Sausalito and the Paradise Irrigation District. 


RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 


• City of Watsonville, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Project Manager. Harris is assisting the City 


with preparing a LHMP. Eric’s role in the project is to lead all aspects of the planning process 


addresses priority risks and build resilience over time. Eric is responsible for managing the work-


plan and budget and facilitating the planning meetings and public workshops.  


 


City of Watsonville, America’s Water Infrastructure Act Risk and Resilience Assessment. Project 


Manager. Harris is leading the Water Division’s Risk and Resilience Assessment, which includes a 


full analysis of the natural and human-induced risks to the Division’s critical infrastructure and 


systems. The assessment will incorporate the risks posed by climate change and its influence on 


the vulnerability of critical water infrastructure. Eric’s role in the project is to provide overall 


leadership, serve as overall technical lead, and coordinate planning activities with Division staff 


in order to develop a robust implementation plan that addresses priority vulnerabilities and 


builds resilience of the Division’s water service over time. 


 


• Calaveras County, Emergency Management Services Staff Assistance. Project Director. Harris is 


providing comprehensive, as-needed support to the County’ Emergency Management Program. 


Services include: providing grant administration services; preparing applications for and securing 


additional priority hazard mitigation grant funds; coordinating public assistance; assessing the 


County’s EOP plan and preparing an assessment of its emergency operations capabilities; and 


supporting the emergency response activities. Eric is responsible for organizing Harris staff 


support for specific work under this project, as well as quality assurance. 


 


• City of Sausalito, Post-Disaster Recovery Process for the Sausalito Boulevard/Crescent Avenue 


Mudslide of February 14, 2019. Project Manager. Harris is providing comprehensive disaster 


recovery support, including construction management, technical studies and design work, and 


grant administration for FEMA and Cal OES Public Assistance in support of debris clean-up, 


street repairs, and restoration of utility services. Eric is responsible for overall project execution 


and effective coordination between design, construction management, and grant 







administration. He is responsible for communicating progress with City Staff, City Council, and 


the public. 


 


• Paradise Irrigation District (PID), Emergency Disaster Recovery Services. Project Manager. In the 


wake of the Camp Fire, Eric led a Harris team that provided emergency staff augmentation 


services to the District. Under Eric’s leadership, the team provided FEMA and Cal OES grant 


coordination and reimbursement assistance. With the team’s support, PID was able to quickly 


secure emergency grant funds. The Harris Team is also assisting with the damage assessment, 


recovery project identification, and documentation including Disaster Survey Reports (Cal OES) 


and Public Assistance Project Worksheets (FEMA). The team provided initial strategic input into 


the recovery planning process for recovery of the water supply system. Eric’s role in leading this 


project will benefits the District’s LHMP implementation planning process to develop effective 


disaster response and recovery activities. 


 


• City of Berkeley, Development of Measure T1 Bond Policies and Procedures Manual. Project 


Manager. Eric led this effort in which Harris developed detailed procedures for defining 


performance metrics and requirements for capital project evaluation, capital project evaluation 


and selection methods, including thorough public engagement, program management 


structuring, financial control standards, and reporting methods. These procedures and 


guidelines will confirm T1 proceeds will be spent in a manner that is consistent with City goals 


and the specific goals of the bond measure. 


 County of Maui Department of Water Supply, HI, Strategic Plan, Phase 1. Scenario Planning 


Lead. The overall goal of the Project was to provide a road map for DWS to operate efficiently, 


engage with the community, and to integrate sustainable water management and policy that 


support the department’s mission “To Provide Clean Water Efficiently”. Eric developed and led 


DWS staff to select future scenarios of DWS operations under various levels of uncertainty 


related to climate change and future development. One of these scenarios was chosen as the 


road map for DWS by which investments will be evaluated against. Eric incorporated several 


multi-hazard risk and resilient issues, such as the aforementioned climate change, sea level rise, 


and growth/development into the visioning exercise to help DWS staff understand the factors to 


strategically plan against. 


 Citrus Heights Water District, CA, Project 2030 Water Main Replacement Study, Senior Project 


Engineer. Eric provided high level perspectives and strategic advice to the Harris team centered 


on presenting technical results and options to the CAC, so that they are best prepared to make 


decisions on the main replacement options. Eric also led the demand forecast, which projected 


how changes in water use affect the way the District replaces and sizes water mains. Eric carried 


out a land-use based approach to estimate water demand for different types of residential, 


commercial, industrial, and public users by using digitally mapped data. This work included 


presenting the results of the study to the District’s Community Action Committee (CAC).  


 


 


 







Michael McCormick 


PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE 


Michael leads the Strategic Advisory Services Division of Harris & Associates. He has 20 years of 


experience across consulting, government, and the non-profit sectors, with experience at the local, 


State, Federal, and international level. Throughout his career, Michael has been an advisor to local, State 


and the Federal government. He also advises non-profits, philanthropies, academic institutions, and 


select private clients. He supports clients across the State as a trusted advisor on topics such as 


planning, political strategy, confidential strategy, strategic planning, hazard mitigation, environmental 


compliance, and resilience. Michael’s focus is on developing teams and relationships that work to 


support programs and projects that have a lasting community benefit. He is a nationally known public 


speaker and has spoken at hundreds of workshops, trainings, and conferences on issues of planning, 


climate change, hazard mitigation, leadership, and organizational change. 


RELEVANT EXPERIENCE  


• City of Watsonville, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Principal-in-Charge. Harris is assisting the City 


with preparing a LHMP. Michael is the technical lead for integration of climate change and 


general plan related discussions into the LHMP. He is also supporting the development of 


language for the CEQA and general plan integration. He provides quality assurance/quality 


control and supports engagement with regulatory and advisory agencies, such as the California 


Office of Emergency Services and the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research.  
 


• City of Sausalito, Post-Disaster Recovery Process for the Sausalito Boulevard/Crescent Avenue 


Mudslide of February 14, 2019. Principal-in-Charge. Harris is providing comprehensive disaster 


recovery support, including construction management, technical studies and design work, and 


grant administration for FEMA and Cal OES Assistance in support of debris clean-up, street 


repairs, and restoration of utility services. Project staff provide end-to-end support to City staff 


in all aspects of the project, from procurement development to cost reimbursements. Michael 


supports the Harris Team to ensure company and subconsultant resources are allocated in an 


appropriate manner while providing the client with high level guidance, process strategy, and 


engagement with regulatory and advisory agencies.  
 


• State of California Governor’s Office, Office of Planning and Research (OPR), Local Government 


and Land Use Lead. Senior Planning Advisor. Michael was the principal land use and local 


initiatives staff serving the Governor and the Cabinet for long-range planning and research (OPR 


constitutes the comprehensive state planning agency). 
– Michael managed the effort for the 2018 General Plan Guidelines update cycle. He was 


also one of the leads for the 2017 update, which was a comprehensive re-write of the 


Guidelines. Michael managed the primary team and all of the sub-teams developing 


content for the update. He led engagement from interdisciplinary teams across State 


agencies, external NGOs, consulting firms, grants staff, and contracted assistance. The 


guidance documents and white papers generated served as the basis for the 2018 and 







forthcoming updates. Most of these efforts include a public review process, response to 


comments, and both webinars and presentations in order to address the most critical 


issues, while not creating issues by offering solutions that don’t fit the problems. 
–  Michael is the lead author on the authoritative guidance from the State of California on 


developing CEQA compliant “qualified” climate action plans (General Plan Guidelines, 


2017, Chapter 8: Climate Change) and has advised hundreds of jurisdictions and special 


districts on how to address climate change. 
– Michael is the lead author on the authoritative guidance from the State of California on 


integrating climate change adaptation in to General Plans, and the use of LHMPS to 


address new mandates from the State on climate change.  
 


• Executive Office of the President, Council on Environmental Quality 2014, Intergovernmental 


Detail. Deputy Associate Director. Michael worked with the federal interagency to develop tools, 


resources, and programs to support community resilience and changes to federal guidelines to 


address emerging hazards and risk. He is one of the authors of the State, Local, and Tribal 


Leaders Task Force on Climate Preparedness and Resilience, focusing on how policies and action 


should support local initiatives to address risk and resilience. 
 


• Department of Commerce/NOAA, Intergovernmental Detail 2015. Policy Advisor to the 


Assistant Secretary for Conservation and Management. The office works closely with Congress, 


other agency leaders, partner organizations, and local communities to develop policies and take 


conservation and community resiliency actions to for their coastal and ocean stewardship and 


services. In this role, Michael led the development of the NOAA resilience strategy in 2015 and 


supported he development of the Climate Resilience Toolkit. He also worked to support the 


development of the Resilience AmeriCorps initiative and a variety of other issues across the 


federal interagency. 
 


• Consulting prior to joining Harris and Associates (2004- 2011), Various Environmental Projects. 


Division Manager, Climate Change and Sustainability Services. Michael served as the Division 


Manager of Climate Change and Sustainability Services for a consulting firm prior to joining OPR. 


He presented at hearings, workshops, and meetings to represent projects. Michael directed a 


team of ten staff and supported multiple cross-disciplinary staff from other teams to support a 


diverse project portfolio. While working on projects, Michael managed the development of 


dozens of greenhouse gas inventories, climate action plans, regional energy plans, and other 


plans and programs. He also managed and supported a wide variety of sustainability, general 


plan, zoning code, CEQA, NEPA, endangered species, renewable energy siting, contract staffing, 


and business development efforts. 







 Wendy Boemecke 


SENIOR PLANNER 


Wendy is a true expert in the Cal OES and FEMA hazard mitigation planning process. She has written and 


reviewed hundreds of LHMPs and helped mitigate the damage from some of California’s most 


devastating fires, floods, and droughts for more than 33 years. With Cal OES, she reviewed and 


contributed to over 300 different Hazard Mitigation Plans, many of which include the CRS 10-step 


process. With an eye for detail, Wendy helps Harris’ clients by coordinating with local governments, 


consultants, and special districts to achieve FEMA compliance for projects with many moving parts. She 


often works behind the scenes, providing technical assistance to agencies, reviewing NFIP regulations, 


and writing capabilities assessments. She provides training to local governments and other entities on 


the LHMP process. Her extensive familiarity with California executive orders, statutes, plans, and policies 


enables Wendy to effectively manage projects and support technical analyses that align with sometimes 


conflicting regulations. Having worked in mitigation planning for many years, Wendy has established a 


great working relationship with other planners in the mitigation section at FEMA and Cal OES. During her 


15-year tenure at Cal OES, Wendy served on emergency response teams, task forces, and incident 


support teams, fulfilling leadership positions as well as logistical roles. Her experience also includes 


mapping out endangered species and FEMA 100-year floodplains, as well as identifying historical 


properties using state-of-the-art GIS equipment and best practices in the field.  


RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 


• Calaveras County, Emergency Management Services Staff Assistance. Senior Emergency Services 


Advisor. Harris is providing comprehensive, as-needed support to the County’ Emergency 


Management Program. Services include: providing grant administration services; preparing 


applications for and securing additional priority grant funds; coordinating public assistance; 


assessing the County’s EOP plan and preparing an assessment of its emergency operations 


capabilities; and supporting the emergency response activities. Wendy’s responsibilities include 


use of the Cal OES crosswalk tool to review the County’s EOP for compliance with Federal and 


State regulations. Wendy is also providing as-needed support for State and Federal grant 


administration services; preparing applications for and securing additional priority hazard 


mitigation grant funds; coordinating public assistance; preparing an assessment of the County’s 


emergency operations capabilities; and supporting the emergency response activities.  


 


• City of Watsonville, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Lead Planner. Wendy is responsible for 


guiding City staff through the development of a LHMP that is readily approved by Cal OES and 


FEMA and adopted by the City. Wendy’s responsibilities include working closely with City staff 


and stakeholders through the LHMP’s Steering and Planning Committees, developing content 


for public meetings, compiling the community’s disaster history, reviewing planning documents 


and technical reports, and writing the LHMP. Wendy is also responsible for managing the overall 


content of the plan, with a focus on developing mitigation actions to address the flood, 


earthquake, and wildfire risks. Wendy is also providing support to ensure the LHMP’s 


compliance with FEMA’s CRS planning strategy for credit under the CRS program’s Floodplain 


Management Planning activity.  







• San Joaquin County, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Lead Planner. Wendy was the Lead Planner 


in facilitating, updating, and providing technical assistance for the LHMP for San Joaquin County 


which was approved by FEMA and adopted by the County. Wendy also developed PowerPoint 


presentations and surveys for the County and helped facilitate town hall meetings on the LHMP 


process, identifying hazards, and mitigation actions. She also had the LHMP be in compliance 


with AB2140 and SB379. 


 


• County of Napa, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 2009. Reviewer. While Wendy worked at Cal OES, 


she was assigned to review the County’s 2009 LHMP. The LHMP encompassed all natural 


hazards. Wendy worked with the County in order to make corrections for the plan and once 


those corrections were completed, she submitted the LHMP to FEMA.  


 


• San Joaquin County, Oak Grove Regional Park Cal OES/ FEMA Project Application. Lead Planner. 


Wendy was the Lead Planner in developing the FEMA HMGP application and supporting 


documents for the San Joaquin County’s Oak Grove Regional Park Project, which included the 


work necessary to repair the lake’s embankment and protect nearby homes from the threat of 


flooding. Wendy’s responsibilities included obtaining site survey, reviewing the scope of work, 


preparing the construction material quantities, preparing the Benefit Cost Analysis, and 


completing all required documentation for the HMGP application package reviewed by County 


staff and submitted to Cal OES for approval. 


 


• City and County of Napa, Regional Emergency Operations Center—2014 Napa Earthquake. Cal 


OES Operations Section Chief. Wendy was the Regional Emergency Operations Center 


Operations Section Chief for the 2014 Napa earthquake. Wendy’s responsibilities included 


review and approval of resources requested from the local agency Emergency Operations 


Centers, relaying critical information to the State Emergency Operations Center, and providing 


mission updates to field personnel. 


 


• City and County of Napa, Local Assistance Center—2005 Napa Flood Event. Cal OES Coordinator. 


Wendy was responsible for coordinating with local, State, and Federal agencies at the Local 


Assistance Center during the recovery phase of the 2005 Napa River flood event. Wendy 


demonstrated her breadth of disaster recovery knowledge by regularly substituting for agency 


personnel at all levels when their staff were not available. Wendy’s responsibilities included 


participation in daily conferences regarding the IA program to report any problems or concerns 


with the aid offered to residents and business owners affected by the disaster. Wendy’s 


responsibilities also included actively listening to the public’s concerns and providing them with 


guidance to services, including counseling services, available to the community. Wendy also 


performed this function for Local Assistance Centers for various agencies throughout California, 


such as Ventura County, San Diego County, City of Santa Rosa, and City of Guerneville. 


 


 


  







Carolyn Yvellez 


HAZARD & RISK ANALYST 


Carolyn has five years of experience as a risk analyst and climate adaptation professional. She is 


passionate about integrating resilience into hazard mitigation and investment decisions. Carolyn has 


excellent communication and consensus building skills and a demonstrated history of building capacity 


and improving efficiency within nonprofit and local government organizations. She brings advanced 


analytic proficiency to the team using geospatial and statistical methods. She is experienced in 


interpreting climate change projections and assessing the resulting potential impacts on people, 


structures, and natural systems. Carolyn employs interactive tools that enable stakeholders to 


manipulate data in order to inform their risk management and adaptation planning decisions. One of 


Carolyn’s accomplishments has been developing an indicator framework to analyze the responses of the 


world’s coastal cities most vulnerable to sea level rise, tropical cyclones, and storm surges. 


RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 


• City of Watsonville, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Hazards and Risk Analyst. Harris is 


assisting the City with preparing a LHMP. Carolyn performed the geo-spatial analyses, risk 


and vulnerability assessments for Hazards of Concern using ArcGIS and Hazus. She also 


projected climate impacts from Cal-Adapt and integrated climate adaptation measures into 


the local hazard mitigation planning process. Additionally, Carolyn is helping to identify 


funding strategies for risk reduction strategies. 


 


• South Bay Cities Council of Governments, Climate Adaptation Plan. Project Manager. 


Carolyn managed the development of and wrote the South Bay’s sub-regional climate 


adaptation plan. She conducted a technical risk assessment (involving geospatial and 


statistical analysis) of critical facilities and populations vulnerable to climate hazards. 


Carolyn also has experience synthesizing and communicating complex scientific reports to 


government officials. 


 


• Notre Dame Global Adaptation Initiative, Urban Adaptation Assessment (UAA). Project 


Manager. Carolyn coordinated with visual design, communication, and web development 


teams to successfully create the UAA online interface, an innovative tool that helps U.S. 


cities assess their climate risks and readiness to adapt. She worked with statistical modelers 


to develop methodology for generating city risk and readiness scores. Carolyn authored the 


UAA Technical Document; which includes definitions, data sources, indicator justifications, 


and methodology. She launched and disseminated final UAA interface via online marketing, 


and in person to stakeholders in Puerto Rico. 


 


• City of South Bend, Department of Innovation, Geographic Information Systems (GIS). 


Intern. Carolyn performed basic geocoding and database management for public works and 


transportation services. 


  







Randy Deodat 


GIS ANALYST 


Randy is a Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Analyst with over 8 years of experience with 


geographic information sciences. He has worked extensively in database design and management, with 


Global Positioning System (GPS), and with GIS customization using Python coding and has provided GIS 


support for mobile software integration, spatial analysis, and online web map and mobile applications 


for a range of diverse projects. As the GIS lead on several large scale, fast-paced projects, he has 


developed mobile applications updates to use in the field, including compliance monitoring updates for 


solar farms, wind farms, and the California High-Speed Rail Project. He has also assisted in the 


preparation of biological technical reports (BTRs), environmental impacts reports (EIRs), initial 


study/mitigated negative declarations (IS/MNDs), and agency compliance submittals. Randy’s technical 


training includes GIS-related software such as ArcMap 9.X and 10.X, ArcCatalog 9.X and 10.X, ArcPad 8.0 


in Trimble GeoXH GPS, Trimble GPS Pathfinder, UrbanFootprint, Python, Google Earth Engine, Collector 


for ArcGIS, Explorer for ArcGIS, Portal for ArcGIS, ArcGIS Online, Survey123 for ArcGIS, Operational 


Dashboard for ArcGIS, and ArcGIS Enterprise, as well as Adobe InDesign. 


Relevant Experience 


• City of Watsonville, Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. GIS Analyst. Harris is assisting the City with 


preparing a LHMP. Randy supported the Team’s geo-spatial analyses, risk and vulnerability 


assessments for Hazards of Concern using ArcGIS. He developed map templates and geo-spatial 


data management systems for hazard and vulnerability data layers. He is also working with 


Carolyn to develop an on-line web-portal concept for the City. 


 


• City of Arvin, City of Arvin Sanitary Sewer Master Plan IS/MND. GIS Analyst. The project includes 


improvements to approximately 54,771 linear feet of sanitary sewer pipeline and 257 manholes 


and comprises 17 individual capital improvement projects. Randy developed GIS mobile 


mapping capabilities for field data collection for project biologists, circumventing the need for 


in-field paper note-taking. For mitigation assessments, Randy performed spatial analysis to 


assess environmental impacts from project implementation. 


 


• City of Los Angeles, City of Los Angeles Public Safety Bond. GIS Analyst. Harris & Associates is 


assisting with the preparation of planning document for a facilities plan for new or replacement 


fire and police facilities. Randy assisted with the planning of finding locations and space for 


facilities, spatially displaying where potential new facilities could be located, and visualizing 


replacement facilities on current City of Los Angeles-owned parcels for 24 sites. 


 


• City of Santee, Fanita Ranch Project Revised EIR. Lead GIS Analyst. The project consists of the 


development of three distinct housing villages that include a range of amenities, services, and 


activities, as well as the restoration and preservation of sensitive habitat areas and the inclusion 


of a public trail system throughout open space areas. Randy ensured consistency across all 


project figures by using creative methods to modify existing figures to be consistent with the 


text and to make the figures more understandable to readers while maintaining data integrity. 









































































		Item V-C- Approval of Harris and Associates Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Contract

		Meeting Date: July 2, 2020



		Item V-C.1 - Resolution 20-16 Approval of Contract for Harris and Associates for a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

		Item V-C.2 - Harris_Sweetwater LHMP Proposal

		Item V-C.3 - Harris contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Emergency Response Plan; COVID-19 Pandemic Response
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report related to the Emergency Response 
Plan, specifically potential updates due to the Covid-19 Disaster. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A contagious disease emergency section has been drafted to be added to the 
emergency response plan exampled by the Covid-19 Disaster we are currently under.  
There are many considerations related to Covid-19 response including social 
distancing, eliminating foot traffic at our offices, monitoring staff for symptoms and 
dealing with each individual related situation, hygiene practices, leave issues, 
coordination with County EOC, testing, and potential changes to our Policies and 
Procedures.  At the June Board meeting a draft was presented and the issue of 
COVID-19 testing was discussed.  The GM submitted revisions to Staff as we agreed 
to in the June meeting.  At this time, comments have not been received so I 
recommend we table this draft discussion until the August Board meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: July 2, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 2, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed District Tax Lien Policy
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and approve the Proposed District Tax 
Lien Policy Changes.  Approve Resolution 20-18. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Covid-19 Disaster has created a need to view many policies and procedures of 
the District differently.  At the June Board meeting, direction was given to the GM to 
bring back a resolution (or Ordinance) clarifying the District’s right to lien property 
taxes to collect delinquent billing.  I have consulted with our legal counsel and with 
the County Tax Collections Department to confirm that the District is authorized to 
use this lien process.   
 
I recommend that the District begin this process on an annual basis at the end of our 
fiscal year, in June 2021, and bring forward to the Board a list of delinquent accounts 
over 90 days overdue that have not been in contact with the District to set up a 
payment plan.  A public hearing would be scheduled concurrent with the June, 2021 
Board meeting where approval by the Board of the delinquent accounts scheduled for 
lien would occur.  The list of delinquent accounts owners would be sent to the County 
to impose a lien on the property’s current property tax bill.  These collections would 
then be transferred to the District much as our annual assessment collections are 
handled.  Detailed language in Ordinance form will be brought forward to the Board 
for review and approval in the August Board meeting.  Resolution 20-18 is on 
tonight’s agenda for review and approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: July 2, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date : July 2, 2018 Subject: District Election – November 3, 2020 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 20-17, Ordering an Election to be Held and Requesting Consolidation with the 
November 3, 2020, General Election, and limiting the Statement of Qualifications to no more than 200 
words with the costs to be paid by the candidate in advance to the District Secretary. 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The estimated cost to the District is for two District Director seats, at large ranges from $18,076 to 
$29,374 based on cost per voter range of $4.00 to $6.50. 


Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) Statement of Qualifications at a not-to-
exceed cost of $656 based on a 200-word, English-only statement.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


The terms of Directors Lipinski and Spillane will expire in December.  The nomination period for 
interested candidates in these open Board seats -- including incumbents -- is July 13 – August 7, 
2020.  All candidates must file a Declaration of Candidacy, a Ballot Designation Worksheet, and a 
Form 700 Statement of Economic Interests (covering the 12 months prior to the filing date) with the 
Registrar of Voters.  The first two forms are available at https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Registrar-
of-Voters/Candidate-Filing/  The Form 700 Statement is available online at http://www.fppc.ca.gov/. 
 
Candidates may also file an optional Statement of Qualifications at their own expense.  Get this form 
from the District, and payment for the Statement must be paid in the form of a "not-to-exceed" check to 
the District, with the receipt filed at the same time as other nomination documents.  This year, the "not 
to exceed" amount is $656 for a 200-word English-only statement but may be as low as $164 
depending on how many statements are submitted for an individual office. 
 
The recommended action is consistent with past Board policy on the election.  
 



https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Registrar-of-Voters/Candidate-Filing/

https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Registrar-of-Voters/Candidate-Filing/

https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Registrar-of-Voters/Candidate-Filing/





Resolution No. 20-17 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ORDERING AN ELECTION TO BE HELD AND REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION 


WITH THE NOVEMBER 3, 2020, GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION 
 
 
 


 WHEREAS, an election will be held on November 3, 2020, in the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District for the purpose of electing District Directors to fill positions that will 
expire in 2020. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors hereby 
request consolidation with any election that may be held on the same day, in the same 
territory or in territory that is in part the same. 
 
 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was introduced by 
Director________________, who moved its adoption, seconded by Director 
________________, and then adopted by the following vote: 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 2, 
2020, by the following vote. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


 
 
 
 


 
 
 


               
      Ed Fortner  


General Manager 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Larry Spillane        







Candidate Filing Procedures
November 3, 2020 Consolidated 


General Election


Sonoma County Registrar of Voters 







ROV Candidate Assistance Staff 


• Kamari Marchbanks- Election Services Supervisor
• Troy Kennedy- Election Specialist – Campaign Finance 
• Jason Bensley- Election Specialist – Candidate Filing 
• Chanel Ruiz-Bricco- Elections Manager 







Important Dates


• July 13th – Nominations Open 
• August 7th – Nominations Deadline 
• August 12th – Extended Nominations Deadline (If Incumbent Did Not 


File) 
• October 5th – Vote By Mail Opens
• November 3rd – Election Day 


E-113


E-88


E-83


E-29



Presenter

Presentation Notes

We can’t review or accept any documents before nominations open on July 13th. 







New Options for Filing 


• E-mail documents to ROV-Candidate@Sonoma-county.org
• E-mail subject line should be the document name-candidate last name (ex. 470-


Marchbanks) 
• Do not e-mail the Code of Fair Campaign Practices or blank instruction pages.


• We will review that documents are complete and will let the candidate 
know if anything is missing.* 


• Candidates will receive an e-mail notifying them that their forms are 
complete and they can call our office at 707-565-6800 to schedule an 
appointment.


*Please note that we are not reviewing forms for accuracy. We are only 
reviewing them to ensure they are complete. 



Presenter

Presentation Notes

To abide by social distancing guidelines and to limit the amount of time you spend in our office, we have developed a new process to file your paperwork. 



mailto:ROV-Candidate@Sonoma-county.org





Documents to File
Forms are available on our website: sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Registrar-of-
Voters/Candidate-Filing/


• Ballot Designation Worksheet
• Candidate Information Sheet 
• Code of Fair Campaign Practices (Optional)
• Statement of Qualifications & Cover Sheet (Optional)
• Form 700 2019-20
• Campaign Forms


• Not Spending Money – Complete Form 470
• Spending Over $.01 – Complete Form 470 & Form 501
• Plans to Spend Over $2,000 – Complete Form 501 and Form 410


• Declaration of Candidacy – Will be sent to candidates prior to their 
appointment with our office. 







Ballot Designation Worksheet 


Ex. Teacher/Parent/Doctor


Complete page 3 
of this worksheet  


if including 
alternate ballot 


designations 







Ballot 
Designation 
Worksheet


(Page 2) 







Ballot 
Designation 
Worksheet


(Page 3) 



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Remember to initial at the top of this page if you do not have alternate ballot designations. 







Candidate Information Sheet







Code of Fair 
Campaign 
Practices 
(Optional)



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Do not e-mail this document. 







Statement of Qualifications 


Candidate completes sections highlighted in yellow







Statement of Qualifications Payment Procedure


• It is the responsibility of the district to collect payment from the 
candidates. 


• If the district decides to bill the candidate after the election, the following 
information will not apply. 


• If advanced payment is required by the district, the candidate must 
present a receipt from the district at the time they file with our office.


• SOQ cost depends on how many candidates in your district file statements 
and if statements are in English only or English and Spanish. 


• After the close of nominations, when the exact number of candidates in 
your jurisdiction have been determined, our Accounting Division will 
contact the district with the exact cost of the statement(s). 







SOQ Payment Example 
• On the Estimated Cost of Statements of Qualifications list, you will see a series of estimates to the right of your 


districts name.  If the candidate request an English only statement, use the figure corresponding to the “English 
only” row and “1 Candidate Statement per page” column to determine what the “not to exceed” amount should 
be.  If the candidate request an English and Spanish statement, use the figure corresponding to the “English & 
Spanish” row and the “2 Candidate Statements Per page” column to determine what the “not to exceed” amount 
should be.“Not to 


Exceed $ 
amount” 
English Only


“Not to Exceed $ 
amount” 
Spanish/English


Write “not to 
exceed $ amount” 
here



Presenter

Presentation Notes

-Some districts pay a portion of the SOQ. If receipt amount is slightly different, we will still accept it. -We will charge the district the correct amount







Form 700 


Refers to investments in 
the district


i.e. owner of a business, 
apartment building etc..



Presenter

Presentation Notes

We will not proof campaign finance forms for accuracy. We will only verify that they are complete. 







Form 470 – Not Spending Money



Presenter

Presentation Notes

If a candidate completes this form and ends up spending money, they will need to complete Form 470 Supplement. 







Form 501 – Spending Over $0.01







Form 410 – Plans to Spend Over $2,000
*Original 
should be 
sent to the 
Secretary 
of State







Contact Information 


• ROV-Candidate@Sonoma-county.org (To submit documents for review)
• ROV-Campaign@Sonoma-county.org (Questions on campaign finance forms)
• Phone: 707-565-6800
• Mailing Address: P.O. Box 11485, Santa Rosa, CA 95406
• Physical Address: 435 Fiscal Drive, Santa Rosa
• Website: https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Registrar-of-Voters/



mailto:ROV-Candidate@Sonoma-county.org

mailto:ROV-Campaign@Sonoma-county.org

https://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CRA/Registrar-of-Voters/



		Item V-F - November elections

		The estimated cost to the District is for two District Director seats, at large ranges from $18,076 to $29,374 based on cost per voter range of $4.00 to $6.50.

		Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) Statement of Qualifications at a not-to-exceed cost of $656 based on a 200-word, English-only statement.



		Item V-F.1 - Resolution 20-17 District Elections

		Item V-F.2 - Candidate Filing Procedures

		Candidate Filing Procedures�November 3, 2020 Consolidated General Election

		ROV Candidate Assistance Staff 

		Important Dates

		New Options for Filing 

		Documents to File

		Ballot Designation Worksheet 

		Candidate Information Sheet

		Ballot Designation Worksheet�(Page 2) 

		Ballot Designation Worksheet�(Page 3) 

		Code of Fair Campaign Practices �(Optional)

		Statement of Qualifications 

		Statement of Qualifications Payment Procedure

		SOQ Payment Example 

		Form 700 

		Form 470 – Not Spending Money

		Form 501 – Spending Over $0.01

		Form 410 – Plans to Spend Over $2,000

		Contact Information 








General Manager’s Report  Page 1 of 7 
July 2, 2020 
 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 2, 2020   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.  Final 2019 Consumer Confidence Reports and 
Certifications were submitted to the SWRCB.    


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in May were 21,453 units (49.2 AF 


Guerneville cycle), and production (calculated as running twelve-month average) was 59.8 
AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were lower, and production was lower (47.3 AF and 
52.3 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference for the 
combined systems; the water loss trend was up this month (21.0%).  Looking at the data 
over the last ten years, water production has dropped approximately 29%, and sales have 
dropped 18%.  The water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in the 15-20% 
range.  Much of the production and water loss drop can be attributed to the capital projects 
funded by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is probably due to conservation; it's unlikely 
historic use levels will return soon.    


 
3.  Leaks:  In June, we had twelve total leak repairs with 142 hours on them.  Seven leaks 


were in Guerneville, four were in Monte Rio, and one leak was in Rio Nido.  All leaks 
were in older lines.  That is more leaks and more person-hours compared to the prior 
month and the same number of leaks and more person-hours compared to April one year 
ago (5 and 23).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total leak line as 
well.  For Calendar Year 2019, total leaks were 78, down from 105 from 2018.  Looking at 
the leaks chart over the last ten years, we've come down from around 300 leaks per year to 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 7 
July 2, 2020 
 


under 80 - quite a difference and very noticeable in what the field crews are able to do - 
address ongoing issues with in-house projects instead of chasing leaks every day.     


   
4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  June rainfall was 0.07”, which is lower than the long-term average 


month and keeps the yearly total (18.67”) below the long-term annual average.  Our driest 
year on record was 1977 and we had 15.08” total by the end of June.        


  
5.   In-House Construction Projects: There were no in-house construction projects in April 


and there was one toilet rebate. 
 


6.   Labor Negotiations:    Gregory Ramirez with IDEC, Laura Strand with Local 39, Staff 
Union stewarts and I met on June 22nd and completed a final tentative agreement for the 
Board’s consideration tonight. 


 
7.   Lower Russian River Community Action Group Governance Meeting:  There was a 


remote meeting of the LRRCAG on June 25th.  The Water Board has commissioned a study 
with the University of California Sacramento to explore options of governance of the Monte 
Rio/ Villa Grande sewerage solutions. Action is being taken around the grant funding for 
the feasibility study for Monte Rio/ Villa Grande sewerage solution(s) including area 
boundaries and disadvantaged status. 


 
8. Lower Harrison Tank Update:  Sweetwater staff, Coastland Engineering and Piazza 


Construction met onsite for a final walkthrough of the retaining wall project and to assess 
the needs for the tank.   It has been determined that there is a need for a roof replacement 
and paint job on the tank in the next few years.  Coastland is developing a cost estimate for 
the next five year Capital Improvement Program. 


 
9. Grant(s) Update:  The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application for the 


FY 2021 CIP (Old River Rd and Woodland Ave. line replacement) is approved.  The CDC 
and CDC staff recommended full funding request for Design and Planning of $115,920.00.  
Final comments period ended on May 31st.  Final approval for Design and Planning of 
$115,920.00 occurred at a May Sonoma County Board of Supervisor’s meeting.  The 
District has been approved to begin the work on the project.  HUD will approve the grant in 
August and the District should expect to receive the Grant Agreement in a matter of weeks.  
I have been working with CalOES to coordinate consultant work scope to create a Local 
Hazard Mitigation Plan for Sweetwater to allow application for FEMA Hazard Mitigation 
Grant funding of future projects.  Harris Engineering has a proposal for the Board’s 
consideration for these services tonight.    


 
10.   Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for July, FY 2020.   


 
          







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 7 
July 2, 2020 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 7 
July 2, 2020 
 


 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 5 of 7 
July 2, 2020 
 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 7 
July 2, 2020 
 


 


Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 FY21+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee 
Reviews Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2021 CIP Planning


•        2021 CIP Design


•        2019 CIP Construction Ends


   Labor Negotiations


    Strategic Planning Nov-19


    Cost of Service Study Mar-20


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-20


Water Rights SCWA 
P t tEmergency Response Plan Review


Building Lease
•        Lease Renewal Aug-20


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt 


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone







General Manager’s Report  Page 7 of 7 
July 2, 2020 
 


 


 
Tracking the Economic Impact of Suspending Water 


Disconnects for Non-payment 
 


Billing Date 


# of Customers 
whose prior bill 
was still unpaid 
when next bill 


mailed 


$ Value of Past Due 
Amounts** 


(including unpaid customer 
deposits) 


2/15/2020 0 $0 
3/15/2020 10 $1,565 
4/15/2020 24 $4,096 
5/15/2020 5 $594.02 
6/15/2020 9 2,947.56 


 
** Customers who sign a COVID-19 Agreement with the District are not included in this amount. 
 


 





		Meeting Date: July 2, 2020



